
  
 

 
 

 

 Matt Jones  County Commissioner    Claire Levy  County Commissioner    Marta Loachamin  County Commissioner 

Community Planning & Permitting 
Courthouse Annex  •  2045 13th Street  •  Boulder, Colorado  80302  •  Tel: 303.441.3930 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 471  •  Boulder, Colorado 80306  •  www.bouldercounty.org 
 

Building Safety & Inspection Services  
 

 
BOULDER COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  

PUBLIC HEARING 
NEDERLAND FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FIRE CODE  

(2018 IFC) 
Public Meeting - THURSDAY, OCTOBER 20, 9:30 a.m. 

Fire Code Docket FCRC-22-0002 

 
Staff: Ron Flax, Chief Building Official, Deputy Director of Community Planning & 
Permitting – Building and Permits, Secretary to the Fire Code Review Committee 

 
The subject of this hearing is acceptance of the proposed Nederland Fire Protection District 
Fire Code for administration by the Nederland Fire Protection District. 
 
The Nederland Fire Protection District (“FPD”) lies generally in the mountainous area of 
Boulder County surrounding and to the West of the Town of Nederland.  The FPD is 
bounded on the North by the Indian Peaks Fire Protection District, to the North-East by 
Sugarloaf Fire Protection District, Timberline Fire Protection District to the East and South-
East, as well as Gilpin County to the South.   
 
The FPD’s board of directors has adopted the 2018 edition of the International Fire Code 
(IFC), including the following appendices: B, C, and D.   
 
Overall, this adoption resolution is largely similar to the adoption resolutions of previous 
editions of the IFC.   
 
Results of the Fire Code Review Committee Discussion and Recommendations:  The 
Boulder County Fire Code Review Committee met on May 24, 2022, at 3:00 PM.  This was 
a Virtual Hearing using Microsoft Teams.  The meeting minutes are attached.   
 
The committee voted unanimously to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners 
that the proposed Nederland Fire Protection District Fire Code be ACCEPTED for 
administration by the district in those portions of unincorporated Boulder County that lie 
within the boundaries of the FPD as long as the FPD made revisions to its adopting 
resolution in accordance with the recommendations of the Fire Code Review Committee.  
Boulder County staff has subsequently received a fully executed copy of the adopting 
resolution and can confirm that the resolution was updated in alignment with all of the 
recommendations made by the Fire Code Review Committee.     
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board of County 
Commissioners ACCEPT the proposed Nederland Fire Protection District Fire Code for 



administration by the district in those portions of unincorporated Boulder County that lie 
within the boundaries of the fire protection district 
 

 
Attachments: Nederland FPD Fire Code Adopting Resolution  
  Map of Nederland FDP Tax district. 

Staff Recommendation for the May 24, 2022 Fire Code Review Committee 
  Meeting Minutes from the May 24, 2022 Fire Code Review Committee 
 
 



   
 

Page 1 of 10 
2018 IFC NFPD – County Final 

A Resolution Adopting and Amending the  

2018 Edition of the International Fire Code® 

 
WHEREAS, the Fire Chief has reviewed the International Fire Code, 2018 Edition, and 
recommend the adoption of the same by the Nederland Fire Protection District; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Nederland Fire Protection District deems it 
necessary and in the best interest of public safety to adopt and enforce the codes for the 
purpose of establishing rules of conduct and standards for the protection of life, health, 
property, security, and welfare of the inhabitants and visitors to the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the International Fire Code, 2018 Edition, published by the International Code 
Council, is a model code for the regulation and governing of the safeguarding of life and 
property from fire and explosion hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of 
hazardous substances, materials, and devices and from conditions hazardous to life and 
property in the occupancy of buildings and premises. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE NEDERLAND FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT: 
 

1 Adoption of the 2018 International Fire Code 
1.1 Code Adopted  

The 2018 International Fire Code is adopted in the form including the sections as amended 
herein, including the following appendices: Appendix B, Fire-Flow Requirements for 
Buildings; Appendix C, Fire Hydrant Locations and Distribution; Appendix D, Fire 
Apparatus Access Roads. 
 
The date on which this resolution shall take effect shall be the date of approval by the County 
Commissioners of Boulder County.  This Code shall be in effect within the limits of the 
Nederland Fire Protection District. 

1.2 Code Described 

The 2018 International Fire Code is published by the International Code Council, 500 New 
Jersey Avenue, NW, 6th Floor, Washington, DC 20001-2070. 

1.3 Copies on File 

At least one copy of the 2018 International Fire Code shall be kept on file in the office of the 
Nederland Fire Protection District, 650 West 4th Street, Nederland, Colorado 80466, and 
may be inspected during regular business hours. 



   
 

Page 2 of 10 
2018 IFC NFPD – County Final 

1.4 Purpose 

The purpose of this code is to establish the minimum standards consistent with nationally 
recognized good practice for providing a reasonable level of life safety and property 
protection from the hazards of fire, explosion, and dangerous conditions in new and existing 
buildings, structures, and premises, and to provide for the safety of firefighters, and 
emergency responders during emergency operations. 

2 Definitions 
Wherever the term “Board of Directors” is used, it shall be held to mean the Board of 
Directors of the Nederland Fire Protection District. 
 
Wherever the word “District” or phrase “Fire District” is used, it shall mean the Nederland 
Fire Protection District. 
 
Wherever the term “International Building Code” is used, it shall mean the Building Code as 
adopted, amended, and incorporated into the Boulder County Building Code. 
 
Wherever the term “International Electrical Code” is used, it shall mean the Electrical Code 
as adopted, amended by the State of Colorado. 
 
Amendments Made In and To the 2018 International Fire Code.  The 2018 International Fire 
Code is amended and changed in the following respects: 
 
Subsection 101.1 is amended to read as follows:  

101.1 Title.  These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of the Nederland Fire 
Protection District, hereinafter referred to as "this code". 

102.13 Conflicts with Other Adopted Codes. Where a conflict arises between this Code 
and the International Building Code and/or the International Residential Code, the more 
stringent application of the respective codes shall apply. 

Exception: When any provision from the respective codes is agreed upon by the Chief 

Building Official and the Fire Code Official as being applicable and acceptable. 

 

102.14 Other Adopted Codes. Where this document refers to other ICC codes, the currently 
adopted edition for the location under consideration shall apply. 

 Exception: When any provision from the respective codes is agreed upon by the Chief 
 Building Official and the Fire Code Official as being applicable and acceptable. 
 
Subsection 103.4 Liability shall be amended by the addition of the following sentence at the 
end of the section: "Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of any immunities 
provided by section C.R.S.  24-10-101, et seq., or by other statutes, or by common law." 

Subsection 104.10 Fire investigations shall be amended by the addition of the following 
sentence at the end of the section: "The authority of the Chief of the District, or authorize 
designee, including all fire code officials, to act as peace officers shall extend to the limits as 
authorized in C.R.S. 16-2.5-109." 



   
 

Page 3 of 10 
2018 IFC NFPD – County Final 

Subsection 104.11 Authority at fires and other emergencies shall be amended by the 
addition of the following sentence at the end of the section: "the authority of the Chief of the 
District, or authorized designee, including all fire code officials, to act as peace officers shall 
extend as far as the authority set forth in C.R.S. Section 32-1-1002, 16-2.5-109, and other 
applicable state statutes." 

Subsection 105.4.1 is amended to read as follows:  

105.4.1 Submittals.  Construction documents shall be submitted in one or more sets and 
in such form and detail as required by the fire code official.  The construction documents 
shall be prepared by a registered design professional when said documents are submitted 
in support of an application for a construction permit.  When requested, qualifications 
statements shall be submitted to the fire code official for the registered design 
professional to demonstrate compliance with appropriate professional qualifications. 

Section 105.6 is repealed and reenacted to read: 

105.6 Required operational permits. The fire code official may issue an operational 
permit for the following operations: 

  (a)105.6.14, Explosives 

  (b)105.6.23, Hot Work 

 (c)105.6.30, Mobile food preparation vehicles 

  (d)105.6.32, Open Burning (Recreational fires on private land exempt) 

  (e)105.6.36, Outdoor assembly events 

  (f)105.6.38, Plant extraction systems 

  (g)105.6.40, Pyrotechnic special effects material 

  (h)105.6.47, Temporary membrane structures and tents 

 

Subsection 105.6.32 is amended to read as follows:  

105.6.32 Open Burning.   

Additional Exception: No permit shall be required if burning is regulated pursuant to 
the regulations promulgated under CRS Section 25-7-123, or regulated by Boulder 
County. 

Subsection 106 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with:  

106.1 Fees.  Fees for services pursuant to the provisions of this code shall be established 
from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 32-1-
1002(1)(j) C.R.S.  Said fees and charges may include a charge for reimbursement to the 
fire district of any consultation fees, expenses or costs incurred by the fire district in the 
performance of inspection related services pursuant to provisions of this code. 

 

106.2 Payment of fees. A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed by law have 
been paid; nor shall an amendment to a permit be released until additional fees, if any, 
has been paid.  



   
 

Page 4 of 10 
2018 IFC NFPD – County Final 

106.3 Operational permit fee. An inspection fee may be charged for any operational 
permit required by Section 105.6. The inspection fee shall be based upon the time 
required to conduct inspections authorized by Section 105.2.2 and associated activities, to 
determine compliance with this code and other applicable laws and ordinances as 
required by Section 105.2.4, and to issue the permit as specified in Section 105.3.7.  

106.4 Construction permit fee. A fee may be charged for any construction permit 
required by Section 105.7 of this code.  The construction permit fee is intended to cover 
the cost of inspections required or requested in connection with the work for which the 
permit is granted, and the associated costs of processing the application 

106.5 Other inspection fee.  Fees for re-inspections, for inspections outside normal 
business hours, or for inspections for which no fee is otherwise established may be 
charged.   

106.6 Plan review fee. The plan review fee is intended to cover the significant costs and 
expenses incurred by the fire district in reviewing materials necessary to perform 
appropriate inspections of construction, uses, processes, and operations. The fee shall be 
assessed based on the reasonable, customary, and necessary time associated with 
reviewing or evaluating site plans; construction documents and calculations; changes, 
additions, or revisions to approved plans; construction documents resubmitted after the 
fire code official's issuing a statement explaining the reasons that a previous submittal 
does not conform to the requirements of this code.  When submittal documents are 
incomplete or changed so as to require additional plan review, an additional plan review 
fee shall be charged. The plan review fee required by Section 106.6 is separate from the 
construction permit fee required by Section 106.4. 

106.7 Unauthorized Work Inspection Fee. Any person or entity that commences any 
work before obtaining a construction permit required by Section 105.7 shall be subject to 
an inspection fee in an amount equal to the amount of the construction permit fee.  The 
fee shall be separate from and in addition to a construction permit fee. Payment of the 
inspection fee shall not relieve any person from compliance with all other provisions of 
this code or from any penalty prescribed by law. The inspection fee shall be assessed 
regardless whether or not a construction permit is then or subsequently issued.   

EXCEPTION: When approved in writing by the fire code official, work may 
commence prior to obtaining a construction permit so long as other appropriate 
permits are in place. 

106.8 Related Fees. The payment of the fee for construction, uses, processes, or 
operations authorized by an operational permit or construction permit shall not relieve the 
applicant or holder of the permit from the payment of other fees that are prescribed by 
law or required by Section 113. 

Subsection 109.1 is repealed in its entirety and reenacted to read as follows: 

109.1 Appeals Procedure-General.  Any person, firm, or corporation who are grieved 
by an application, interpretation, or order made by fire district personnel, pursuant to any 
provision of the code for the standards adopted, may file within three days a written 
notice of appeal with the fire district requesting a hearing before the Fire Chief.  All 
appeals must be made in writing to the Fire Chief at the district's administrative office.  
The Fire Chief shall establish reasonable rules for such appeal and shall make a record of 



   
 

Page 5 of 10 
2018 IFC NFPD – County Final 

all proceedings; the decision of the Fire Chief shall be considered a final administrative 
decision. 

109.1.1 Appeals Procedure-Administrative Decisions.  To determine the suitability of 
alternate materials and types of construction and to provide for reasonable interpretations 
of the provisions of this code, upon request of an interested party, including the Fire 
Chief or designee, there shall be, and is hereby created a board of appeals consisting of 
five members who are qualified by experience and training to pass judgment upon 
pertinent matters.  The board of appeals shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and 
shall hold office at its pleasure.  The board of appeals shall adopt reasonable rules of 
procedure for conducting its business, and shall render all interpretations, decisions, and 
findings in writing to the appellant or requesting party with a duplicate copy to the Fire 
Chief.  All appeals of the Fire Chief's decision shall be made in writing, within three days 
of the date of the Fire Chief's decision, to the Board of Directors by delivery to the 
district Fire Chief or his representative at the district's administrative office. 

Subsection 110.4 is amended to read as follows:  

110.4 Violation penalties.  Persons who violate a provision of this code or shall fail to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or who shall correct install alter repair or do 
work in violation of the approved construction documents or directions of the fire code 
official or of a permit or certificate used under the provisions of this code, shall be guilty 
of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not more than $250.  Each day that a violation 
continues after due notice has been served shall be deemed a separate offense. 

Subsection 112.4 is amended to read as follows:  
 

112.4 Failure to comply.  Any person who shall continue any work after having been 
served a stop work order except such work as that person is directed to perform to 
remove a violation or unsafe condition shall be liable to a fine and/or imprisonment up to 
the maximum specified in CRS Section 32-1-1001 and CRS section 32-1-1002.  Each day 
in which such violation occurs shall constitute a separate violation pursuant to CRS 
Section 32-1-1002 (3) (d)25.  

 
Section 202, Definitions, Occupancy Classifications:  

“Uses other than Group H” 

Add items: 

18.  Distilling or brewing of beverages conforming to the requirements of the 
International Fire Code. 

19.  The storage of beer, distilled spirits and wines in barrels and casks conforming to 
the requirements of the International Fire Code. 

“Moderate-hazard storage, Group S-1” 

Add: Beverages over 16-percent alcohol content 

 
 
Subsection 503.2.9 is added to read as follows:  
 



   
 

Page 6 of 10 
2018 IFC NFPD – County Final 

503.2.9 Driveway Access.  Driveways from platted roads to single family residences 
shall be sized to meet the requirements of the Boulder County Multimodal Transportation 
Standards.  Inside and outside curve radii will be determined by the Fire Code Official to 
accommodate the fire apparatus expected to respond to the residence. 
 

Subsection 507.2.3 is added to read as follows:  
507.2.3 In-ground Cisterns.  In-ground cisterns for fire protection shall be designed, 
installed and maintained to meet the requirements of Boulder County and the Fire Code 
Official.   
 

Subsection 507.2.4 is added to read as follows:  
 
507.2.4 Community Cisterns.  Where an occupancy is close enough and has adequate 
access by firefighting apparatus, in the opinion of the Fire Code Official, a community 
cistern may be used to provide firefighting water supply, instead of an In-ground Cistern 
as described in Subsection 507.2.3. 
 

Section 507 of the International Fire Code is amended to add Section 507.5.3.1 to read as 
follows: 

 
507.5.3.1. Privately Owned Hydrant Maintenance.  Privately owned hydrants shall be 
maintained at the expense of the private property owner, subject to the direction and 
requirements of the Fire Code Official.  Such private hydrants shall be flushed and tested 
periodically according to the Fire Code.  In the event such testing reveals that the flow 
from private hydrants is inadequate according to applicable standards, modifications 
necessary to meet these standards shall be ordered by the Fire Code Official and made at 
the expense of the property owner.  All private hydrants shall be painted the same color 
as hydrants on public rights-of-way or elsewhere throughout the District with a different 
color cap, that being white, to designate a private fire hydrant.  Appropriate markings or 
signs restricting parking in front of or adjacent to fire hydrants shall be designated by the 
Fire Code Official and implemented at the expense of the owner of the property.  No 
point of connection to any private fire hydrant shall be left uncapped without written 
permission of the Fire Code Official. 

 
Subsection 903.2.8 is amended to read as follows:  

 
903.2.8 Group R and Residences constructed under the 2018 International 
Residential Code. An automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 
903.3 shall be provided throughout all residences. 

 
Subsection 903.3.1.3 is amended to read as follows:  

 
903.3.1.3 Residential Sprinkler Systems.  Automatic sprinkler systems installed in one 
and two-family dwellings, Group R-3, and R-4 Congregate living facilities and 
townhouses shall be permitted to be installed throughout in accordance with International 
Building Code Section 903 as adopted by Boulder County. 
 

Subsection 903.3.1.3.1 is added to read as follows:  



   
 

Page 7 of 10 
2018 IFC NFPD – County Final 

 
903.3.1.3.1 Fire Department Connections.  Residential sprinkler systems which are 
supplied by atmospheric pressure tanks and fire pumps shall be installed with a Fire 
Department Connection, the size and location of which shall be determined by the Fire 
Code Official. 
 

Subsection 903.3.1.3.2 is added to read as follows:  
 
903.3.1.3.2 Attached Garage Sprinklers.  Residences with attached garages, where the 
garage may serve as an egress path, shall have the garage sprinkled, as determined by the 
Fire Code Official. 
 

Subsection 903.3.1.3.3 is added to read as follows:  

903.3.1.3.3 Interior and Exterior Notification.  Residential sprinkler systems shall have 
adequate interior notification of the occupants provided to alert them that the sprinkler 
system is activated, in accordance with NFPA 72.  Additionally, a horn and strobe device 
shall be installed above the Fire Department Connection noted in Section 903.3.1.3.1.    

 

NEW CHAPTER 40 - STORAGE OF DISTILLED SPIRITS AND WINES 
 
User note: 
About this chapter:  Chapter 40 provides specific requirements for the storage of distilled spirits and 
wines. In accordance with Section 307.1.1 of the International Building Code®, these occupancies are 
not classified as a Group H occupancy. Instead, as listed in Sections 311.2 and 311.3 of the 
International Building Code, the storage of beverages that contain up to and including 16-percent 
alcohol are classified as a Group S-2 occupancy, and those that contain over 16-percent alcohol 
content are classified as a Group S-1 occupancy. Note that those that are classified as a Group S-1 
occupancy are required to be provided with an automatic sprinkler system throughout the Group S-1 
fire area, regardless of size, in accordance with Section 903. 
 

SECTION 4001 – GENERAL 
 
4001.1 General.  The storage of distilled spirits and wines in barrels and casks shall comply with this 
chapter in addition to other applicable requirements of this code. 
 
4001.1.1 Nonapplicability.  Chapter 50 and Chapter 57 are not applicable to the storage of distilled 
spirits and wines in barrels and casks as identified in Section 5001.1, Exception 10, and Section 
5701.2, Item 10. 
 

SECTION 4002 – DEFINITIONS 
 
4002.1 Definitions. 
Words and terms used in this chapter and defined in Chapter 2 shall have the meanings ascribed to 
them as defined therein. 
 

SECTION 4003- PRECAUTIONS AGAINST FIRE 
 
4003.1 Spill control.  Drainage or containment systems shall be provided by means of curbs, 
scuppers, special drains or other suitable means to prevent the flow of spills throughout the building. 
 



   
 

Page 8 of 10 
2018 IFC NFPD – County Final 

4003.2 Ventilation.  For rooms and spaces where distilled spirits and wines in barrels and casks are 
stored, ventilation shall be provided in accordance with the International Mechanical Code and one of 
the following: 
 

1 The rooms and spaces shall be ventilated at a rate sufficient to maintain the concentration of 
vapors within the area at or below 25 percent of the lower flammable limit (LFL). This shall 
be confirmed by sampling the actual vapor concentration under normal operating conditions. 
The sampling shall be conducted throughout the enclosed storage area, extending to or 
toward the bottom and the top of the enclosed storage area. The vapor concentration used to 
determine the required ventilation rate shall be the highest measured concentration during the 
sampling procedure. The sampling shall be conducted manually or by installation of a 
continuously monitoring flammable vapor detection system. 

 
The rooms and spaces shall be provided exhaust ventilation at a rate of not less than 1 cfm per 

square foot [0.00508 m3/(s × m2)] of solid floor area. The exhaust ventilation shall be 
accomplished by natural or mechanical means, with discharge of the exhaust to a safe 
location outside the building. 

 
  
4003.3 Sources of ignition.  Sources of ignition shall be controlled in accordance with Sections 
4003.3.1 through 4003.4. 
4003.3.1 Smoking.  Smoking shall be prohibited and “No Smoking” signs provided as follows: 

1. In rooms or areas where hazardous materials are stored or dispensed or used in open 
systems in amounts requiring a permit in accordance with Sections 105.5 and 105.6. 

2. Within 25 feet (7620 mm) of outdoor storage, dispensing or open-use areas. 
3. Facilities or areas within facilities that have been designated as totally “no smoking” 

shall have “No Smoking” signs placed at all entrances to the facility or area. 
Designated areas within such facilities where smoking is permitted either 
permanently or temporarily shall be identified with signs designating that smoking is 
permitted in these areas only. 

4. In rooms or areas where flammable or combustible hazardous materials are stored, 
dispensed or used. 
 

Signs required by this section shall be in English as a primary language or in symbols allowed by this 
code and shall comply with Section 310. 
 
4003.3.2 Open flame.  Open flames and high-temperature devices shall not be used in a manner that 
creates a hazardous condition and shall be listed for use with the hazardous materials stored or used. 
 
4003.3.3 Industrial trucks.  Powered industrial trucks used in areas designated as hazardous 
(classified) locations in accordance with NFPA 70 shall be listed and labeled for use in the 
environment intended in accordance with NFPA 505. 
 
4003.3.4 Electrical.  Electrical wiring and equipment shall be installed and maintained in accordance 
with Section 608 and NFPA 70. 
 
4003.4 Lightning.  Structures containing barrel storage should be protected from lightning. The 
lightning protection equipment shall be installed in accordance with NFPA 70 and NFPA 780. 
 

SECTION 4004 – STORAGE 
 
4004.1 Storage.  Storage shall be in accordance with this section and Section 315. 



   
 

Page 9 of 10 
2018 IFC NFPD – County Final 

 
4004.2 Empty containers.  The storage of empty containers previously used for the storage of 
flammable or combustible liquids, unless free from explosive vapors, shall be stored as required for 
filled containers. 
 
4004.3 Basement storage.  Class I liquids shall be allowed to be stored in basements in amounts not 
exceeding the maximum allowable quantity per control area for use-open systems in Table 
5003.1.1(1), provided that automatic suppression and other fire protection are provided in accordance 
with Chapter 9. Class II and IIIA liquids shall also be allowed to be stored in basements, provided 
that automatic suppression and other fire protection are provided in accordance with Chapter 9. 
 
4004.4 Bulk beverage storage areas.  There shall be no storage of combustible materials in the bulk 
beverage storage areas not related to the beverage storage activities. 
 

SECTION 4005 - FIRE PROTECTION 
 
4005.1 Automatic sprinkler system. The storage of distilled spirits and wines shall be protected by 
an approved automatic sprinkler system as required by Chapter 9. 
 
4005.2 Portable fire extinguishers.  Approved portable fire extinguishers shall be provided in 
accordance with Section 906. 
 

SECTION 4006 – SIGNAGE 
 
4006.1 Hazard identification signs.  Unless otherwise exempted by the fire code official, visible 
hazard identification signs, as specified in NFPA 704 for the specific material contained, shall be 
placed on stationary containers and above-ground tanks; at entrances to locations where hazardous 
materials are stored, dispensed, used or handled in quantities requiring a permit; and at specific 
entrances and locations designated by the fire code official. 
 
4006.1.1 Maintenance and style.  Signs and markings required by Section 4006.1 shall not be 
obscured or removed; shall be in English as a primary language or in symbols allowed by this code; 
shall be durable; and the size, color and lettering shall be approved. 

 

 

3 Enforcement and Appeals 
1. The Fire Chief shall enforce this code in accordance with the procedures set forth in 

this code and C.R.S 32-1-1002. 
2. A Notice of Violation or Hazard may be issued by the Fire Chief or his designee 

concerning violations or hazards which are not corrected on-site during an inspection 
and an Order to Comply may be issued by the Fire Chief or his designee for: 

a. failure to correct a violation or hazard within the time specified in a 
previously issued a Notice of Violation or Hazard; or 

b. violating the code or state statute and said violation renders the building, 
structure, or premises especially liable to fire or is a hazard to the safety of the 
occupants thereof, or which is so situated as to endanger other property is set 
forth in CRS Section 32-1-1002 (3), whether or not a Notice has been 
previously issued. 

3. An appeal of a Notice of Violation or Hazard may be made in accordance with the 
provisions of this code and resolution. 



   
 

Page 10 of 10 
2018 IFC NFPD – County Final 

4. An appeal of an Order to Comply may be made in accordance with the provisions of 
this code and resolution only if no previous appeal has been made of a previously 
issued Notice of Violation or Hazard concerning the same violation or hazard. 

5. If no appeal is made pursuant to this code and resolution, or to the court pursuant to 
CRS Section 32-1-1002 (3), and compliance with an Order and or correction of a 
hazard has not occurred, the Fire Chief or his designee may instruct a Boulder County 
Sheriff's deputy to issue a summons or a citation for the Boulder County District 
Court. 

6. An appeal shall suspend the time limits for compliance or correction of a fire hazard 
or hazards, until the appeal is resolved for appeals of a Notice of Violation or Hazard 
which is issued pursuant to Section 4, paragraph 2a herein.  An appeal shall not 
suspend the time limit for compliance or correction of life safety deficiencies.  An 
appeal of an Order issued pursuant to section 4, paragraph 2b herein shall not suspend 
the time limits for compliance or correction, and compliance or correction shall be 
made or render forth with unless the Order is suspended pursuant to the procedures 
set forth in this code and resolution. 

 
 
 
Approved  July 27th, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Nederland Fire Protection 
District. 
 
__________________________________ 
President, Board of Directors 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Vice President, Board of Directors 



Gilpin County

Sugarloaf
Fire District

Timberline
Fire District

Four Mile
Fire District

72

119

Nederland
Fire District

Indian Peaks
Fire District

72

Nederland

County Boundary
Municipalities

Fire Protection Districts
Nederland
Four Mile
Gold Hill
Indian Peaks
Sugarloaf
Timberline

Nederland Fire
Protection District

Doc Path: V:\gislu\Special Districts\Fire Protection Districts\FireProtectionDistricts Countywide_Ned_Berthoud.mxd
joryan

Date: 5/16/2022
The user agrees to all Terms of Use set
forth by Boulder County. For Terms of
Use, please visit:
www.bouldercounty.org/mapdisclaimer

0 1 2
Miles



  
 

 
 

 

Matt Jones  County Commissioner    Claire Levy  County Commissioner    Marta Loachamin  County Commissioner 
 

Community Planning & Permitting 
Courthouse Annex  •  2045 13th Street  •  Boulder, Colorado  80302  •  Tel: 303.441.3930 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 471  •  Boulder, Colorado 80306  •  www.bouldercounty.org 
 

Boulder County 
Fire Code Review Committee 

 
Minutes 

May 24, 2022 
3:00 PM 

Virtual Hearing via Microsoft Teams 
 
On May 24th, the Boulder County Fire Code Review Committee met to discuss two fire code 
adoption requests: the adoption and amendments of the 2021 International Fire Code by 
Berthoud Fire Protection District AND the adoption and amendments of the 2018 International 
Fire Code by Nederland Fire Protection District.  
 
The meeting convened at 3:16 pm and was recorded.  This recording is available upon request.   
 
Board Members Present: Michelle Kelly, Toby Myers, and Dean Rogers. 
 
Staff Present: Ron Flax (Chief Building Official/CP&P Deputy Director), Kathy Gissel (Permit 
Operations Manager), Rick Hackett (Communications Specialist), Liana James (County 
Attorney) and Erica Rogers (County Attorney). 
 
Interested Others: Doug Saba and Rik Henrikson. 
 
1.  Call to Order 
Dean Rogers called the meeting to order. 
 
2.  Past Minutes 
Approval of Fire Code Review Committee minutes from June 8, 2021 (Lyons and Mountain 
View Adoption of Fire Codes). 
Motion: Michelle Kelly moved to approve the minutes 
Second: Toby Myers 
Vote:     Motion approved by unanimous vote.   
 
3.  Public Hearing 
FCRC-22-0001 – BERTHOUD FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT REQUESTS TO 
ADOPT AND AMEND THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 
 
The Fire Code Review Committee had a detailed discussion of the text of the proposed 
amendments contained within Berthoud Fire Protection District Resolution 2021-11-16.  There 
were a few concerns raised about some wording that could potentially limit the fire district’s 
ability to enforce the fire code, as well as some questions regarding potential conflicts with the 
Boulder County Land Use code.  The consensus of the committee was that the wording is not 
anticipated to create any conflicts in practice and should be approved as proposed.     
 



Motion: Michelle Kelly motioned to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners that 
the proposed Berthoud Fire Protection District Fire Code be ACCEPTED for administration by 
the district in those portions of unincorporated Boulder County that lie within the boundaries of 
the fire protection district. 
Second: Dean Rogers  
Vote:     Motion approved unanimously 
 
FCRC-22-0002 – NEDERLAND FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT REQUESTS TO 
ADOPT AND AMEND THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 
 
Rik Henrikson from Nederland FPD presented the requested code adoption and amendments.  
 
The Fire Code Review Committee had a few questions and suggestions for the Fire District.  
The committee identified several typographical errors, as well as several locations where 
corrections were needed to ensure that the resolution was referencing the correct documents or 
correct editions of referenced documents.  There were also a few editorial recommendations that 
would improve the clarity of the resolution and reduce possible confusion.   
 
Rik Henrikson agreed to take the edits and comments back to the Nederland Board, and with 
their Board’s approval of the changes, will then resubmit their requested adoption to Boulder 
County. The Committee agreed that they would not need to review revised Nederland 
Resolution as long as the changes aligned with the committee’s recommendations.   
 
Motion: Michelle Kelly motioned to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners that 
the proposed Nederland Fire Protection District Fire Code be ACCEPTED for administration by 
the district in those portions of unincorporated Boulder County that lie within the boundaries of 
the fire protection district, with the stipulations as noted in the staff recommendation and 
comments suggested by the committee.   
 
Second: Toby Myers  
Vote:     Motion approved unanimously  
 
4.  Adjourned 
Motion: Dean Rogers concluded the hearing 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:00 pm. 
 
 
5. Additional Post Meeting Notes: On July 29th, the Nederland Fire Protection District 
submitted a revised Resolution Adopting and Amending the 2018 Edition of the International 
Fire Code to Ron Flax, Secretary of the Boulder County Fire Code Review Committee.  This 
document was approved on July 27th, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Nederland Fire 
Protection District.  The revised document contains all of the edits and revisions that were 
recommended by the Fire Code Review Committee and was determined by Ron Flax to meet the 
requirements contained in the motion for approval by the committee.   


	Staff Recommendation - Nederland FPD - BOCC Hearing.pdf
	Nederland Resolution -  Adoption of the 2018 IFC - Revised July 2022 - FINAL.pdf
	A Resolution Adopting and Amending the
	2018 Edition of the International Fire Code®
	1 Adoption of the 2018 International Fire Code
	1.1 Code Adopted
	1.2 Code Described
	1.3 Copies on File
	1.4 Purpose

	2 Definitions
	Exception: When any provision from the respective codes is agreed upon by the Chief
	Building Official and the Fire Code Official as being applicable and acceptable.
	3 Enforcement and Appeals

	Nederland FPD Map.pdf
	Berthoud and Nederland Fire Code Review Committee Meeting Minutes.pdf

